
Economy Regeneration & Development 
Committee
Date: Tuesday, 27 October 2020
Time: 6.00 p.m.

Venue: via Microsoft Teams

Contact Officer: Mike Jones, Principal Committee Officer
Tel: 0151 691 8363
e-mail: Michaeljones1@wirral.gov.uk
Website: www.Wiral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION 

2. APOLOGIES 

3. MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to consider whether they have any disclosable 
pecuniary interests and/or any other relevant interest in connection 
with any item(s) on this agenda and, if so, to declare them and state 
the nature of the interest.

4. PUBLIC AND MEMBER QUESTIONS 

4a.      Public Questions

Notice of questions to be given in writing or by email, by 
12noon, Thursday 22 October 2020 to the Council’s Monitoring 
Officer and to be dealt with in accordance with Standing Order 
10.

4b.     Statements and Petitions

Representations and petitions to be dealt with in accordance 
with Standing Order 11.

Public Document Pack



4c.      Questions by Members

Questions by Members to be dealt with in accordance with 
Standing Orders 12.3 to 12.8.

SECTION A - BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

5. 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS (Pages 1 - 10)

6. BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING (Pages 11 - 14)

SECTION B - WORK PROGRAMME / OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY

7. ECONOMY, REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE REPORT (Pages 15 - 22)

8. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The following items contain exempt information.

RECOMMENDATION:  That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that 
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by 
paragraph 3 of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to that Act. The 
Public Interest test has been applied and favours exclusion. 

SECTION C - KEY AND OTHER DECISIONS

9. HIND STREET: COLLABORATION AGREEMENT (Pages 23 - 50)



ECONOMY REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 27 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE

REPORT SUMMARY

The report provides the Committee with the process for budget setting as a transition year 
for 2021/22 and describes the financial position for 2021/22 which as at Quarter 1 was 
deficit of £45m, and the actions being put in place to mitigate the gap. 

These actions include a phased approach of 5 stages and includes the timeline for the 
2021/22 budget setting process of when budget proposals are presented to the Policy and 
Services Committees for the recommendation to Full Council to set the 2021/22 budget. 

As this is a transition year, proposals have been identified and will be presented to the 
Committee by Officers due to the tight timescale to approve the budget.  However, the 
Committee is encouraged to identify their own proposals for Officers to work up, if within the 
timescale, to be included for the 2021/22 Budget.  For future years this will become the 
usual process and throughout the year the Committee will be identifying proposals for 
Officers to work up for the following years budget. 

RECOMMENDATION/S

That the Committee note the Council’s current financial position and process for the 
2021/22 budget in this transition year.

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 The Policy and Resources Committee have responsibility for approving budget 
options that will be recommended to Full Council to set the annual budget.  To 
enable the Policy and Resources Committee to recommend budget proposals to Full 
Council, the Committee needs to receive feedback from individual Committee’s on 
those proposals.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 The budget proposals are not presented to the Committee for consideration and are 
presented directly to the Policy and Resources Committee. However, this will not 
provide the Committee with the opportunity to take ownership of the proposals or to 
feedback to the Policy and Resources Committee on the outcome of the debate.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The Council must set a balanced budget by 11 March by law and the Local 
Government Finance Act, 1988 places certain responsibilities on the Chief Finance 
Officer, namely Section 114 (3): “The chief finance officer of a relevant authority shall 
make a report under this section if it appears to him that the expenditure of the 
authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) in a financial year is 
likely to exceed the resources (including sums borrowed) available to it to meet that 
expenditure.”

2020/21 and 2021/22 CURRENT BUDGET POSITION 

3.2 As reported at Quarter 1 the year-end forecast for the 2020/21 budget was an 
expected deficit of £30m.  Since then, further funding has been provided by 
Government and information has been received from Government on a 
compensation scheme for lost income from sales, fees and charges as a result of 
Covid-19. 

3.3 Taking the new third tranche of funding received of £3.2m and an assumption of 
£9.3m compensation for lost income from sales, fees and charges, plus some further 
adjustments, the 2020/21 year-end deficit forecast has been reduced to £22m. 

3.4 This deficit is made up of (main items):

 £17m of unachievable original savings from the 2020/21 budget as a result of 
delays in progression caused by Covid.  These are:

o £5.0m new Council model and structure
o £4.55m Contract reviews and renegotiations
o £3.75m Adult Social Care reviews and efficiencies
o £1.27m Children’s Looked After Children reductions
o £2.5m New investments and refinancing
o £0.64m Zero Based Budgeting pilot

Page 2



 £6m residual income losses after an assumption for compensation from the 
government scheme for sales, fees and charges losses

 £2m of unachievable capital receipt sales as a result of delays in progression 
caused by Covid

 -£3m of forecast savings as a result of vacancies 

3.5 The Council must take necessary remedial and urgent action to deal with the 
significant deterioration in the financial position and return to a balanced budget 
position. Failure to consider and adopt reduction measures to the 2020/21 budget or 
find further funding from Government or elsewhere within year, could result in the 
issuing of a s114 notice before year end. 

3.6 To mitigate this, the Council has requested permission from MHCLG to apply to HM 
Treasury on the Council’s behalf for a capitalisation directive.  This means that the 
Council can charge any unmet 2020/21 and potentially 2021/22 deficits specifically 
incurred as a result of Covid to the capital programme.  

3.7 As a consequence of the forecast deficit in 2020/21 there is an ongoing impact for 
the 2021/22 budget.  The unachievable savings that the Council is reporting that it is 
not able to make during 2020/21 are permanent savings and if not made in year, will 
still have to be made in 2021/22.  

3.8 In resetting the Medium-Term Financial Plan at Quarter 1 there was a forecast 
budget gap in 2021/22 of £45m.  This was made up of (main items)

 £17m carried forward unachievable savings from 2020/21 (See above - If any of 
these can be mitigated in 2020/21, this value will reduce)

 £7m of existing pressures from contract, pay and levy increases
 £9m new pressures from Adult Social Care, Children’s Social Care and 

Homelessness
 £7m assumed reductions of funding from Public Health
 £5m assumed loss of income from Sales, Fees and Charges continuing as a 

result of Covid 

3.9 The total gap at Quarter 1 over the next two years was therefore £67m.  As new 
restrictions come into force to mitigate against rising infection numbers of Covid-19, 
this gap is forecast to increase.  Work is currently ongoing to quantify this; the 
assumption for loss of income and pressures in Children’s Social Care are already 
estimated to be significantly under forecast. 

3.10 If HM Treasury allows the capitalisation directive to be approved, the deficit for 
2020/21 will be significantly reduced and can be offset by utilising some of the 
immediate actions listed below. If however the capitalisation directive is not approved 
then the full £22m would need to be found before 31 March 2021 in order to balance 
the budget.

3.11 A rejection of the capitalisation directive would also mean that any savings already 
identified in immediate actions would not then be available for use towards the 
2021/22 budget.  This would result in much more difficult decisions being taken on 
the longer term actions, and if these do not meet the 2021/22 budget gap then could 
potentially result in the issuing of a s114 notice.

Page 3



Budget Deficit Mitigations

3.12 Since June, the Strategic Leadership team have been identifying options to mitigate 
the overall deficit and are working through a programme of immediate actions that 
can be taken now, and longer term actions to ensure the budget is sustainable for 
the future.  This ‘twin track’ approach ensures that any immediate quick wins will not 
be implemented at the detriment of any longer terms proposals that will generate 
future income or result in future cost avoidance. 

3.13 The process to set a balanced budget for 2021/22 is described in 5 phases below: 

Phase 1 – Immediate Actions 

(a) Review of all 2020/21 unachievable savings to determine whether a 
proportion of these can be achieved 

(b) Review of 2020/21 growth/pressures to determine as a result of Covid, 
whether any assumptions have changed and if all the growth/pressures are 
required 

(c) Review of 2021/22 pressures to determine whether they are all still required 
and if so, at the same value 

(d) Review of earmarked reserves to determine whether any can be clawed back 
to be used to support the 2021/22 budget 

(e) Review of the 2020/21 budget forecasts to determine whether any savings as 
a result of Covid can be carried forward and used to contribute to the 2021/22 
budget

Phase 2 – Directorate Proposals
 
(a) The identification of short-term options proposals for Members to balance the 

2021/22 budget from Officers.  This is a continuous process and Officers will 
continue to submit proposals up to and beyond December 2020 .

(b) The identification of medium to long term proposals to ensure the Council can 
be financially sustainable for the future.  This process is being twin tracked 
with (a) to ensure no duplication or contradiction. This is a continuous process 
and will carry on into the Financial Sustainability Programme once this is re-
established.

Phase 3 – Categorisation of Proposals 

An initial grouping of proposals into four themes to support evidence-based 
decision making for Members: 

1) An assessment of whether statutory services provided are efficient, and 
where they are not to submit efficiency proposals 

2) An assessment of non-statutory services of whether they are providing 
beneficial outcomes that support cost avoidance and demand reduction in 
statutory services, and where they are not to submit proposals as to whether 
to continue with those services 

Page 4



3) An assessment of income generating services as to whether they can 
demonstrate a future return on investment, and where they cannot, to submit 
proposals as to whether to continue with those services

4) An assessment of all back office functions to identify whether they are 
providing a value added service to support statutory and beneficial non-
statutory services, and where they do not to submit proposals as to whether to 
continue with those services. 

Phase 4 – Corporate Challenge 

A further breakdown of the four themes into 7 individual workstreams supported by a 
lead Officer to be accountable for ensuring progress against the workstreams.  The 
themes are being led by a corporate challenge process to ensure all areas of the 
Council have been considered: 

1) Service savings 
2) Service effectiveness 
3) Income & Traded Services 
4) Contracts 
5) Assets 
6) Workforce 
7) Prevention Strategy

As a result of this challenge a series of programmes have been identified to 
commence/have commenced with the aim of reducing costs across the Council in 
the immediate, medium and long term.  These are:

 Review of effectiveness of specific back office services to ensure they are fit for 
purpose, adding value and taking full advantage of digitalisation.

 A full Cost of Care exercise for Social Care commissioned services.
 A whole Council Prevention Strategy to reduce future demand and reduce costs
 A Zero/Outcomes Based Budgeting exercise to ensure resources are aligned to 

outcomes and only provided where beneficial outcomes aligned to the Council’s 
priorities can be evidenced.

 A full establishment review to ensure staffing resources are aligned to the 
Council’s priorities, especially in light of additional capacity required following 
Covid-19.

 A review of Adult Social Care pathways to ensure they are as efficient as they 
can be and are optimising and outcomes based care approach.

 A strategy for reducing the cost of Looked After Children in the short to medium 
term while the Prevention Strategy can be implemented.

 A review of the Council’s assets to ensure the Council is only holding assets that 
contribute to its priorities.

 Return on Investment modelling on the Council’s income generating activities to 
ensure investment is only provided where a future return can be demonstrated

 A review of all Council contracts and contract management functions to ensure 
services are only commissioned that contribute to the Council’s priorities and 
once commissioned are being managed effectively.

 The implementation of a new combined finance/HR/procurement critical business 
system

Page 5



Phase 5 – Contingency Plan 

In the event of proposals generated by the first 4 themes do not equal the value of 
the budget gap, a contingency process is being developed.  Once all the proposals 
from the first four themes have been received and evaluated and the gap has not 
been met, other proposals need to be considered. The Council is not able to not set 
a balanced budget by law and where Members are not able to identify proposals to 
meet the gap, this would mean that the expenditure of the Council outweighs its 
funding and the Section 151 Officer would be required to issue a Section 114 
statement. 

The contingency plan is to identify for all services, how each service could continue 
with a 5%, 10% or 15% reduction in those budgets.  These proposals would indicate 
to Members what the reduced service would look like, what the implications would be 
and what the risks are likely to be.  In the event of not being able to bridge the 
budget gap with proposals from the first 4 phases of the process, Members would 
need to determine what level of risk they would be comfortable to accept in deciding 
to feedback to the Policy and Resources Committee on these phase 5 proposals.

This effective cut to services is high risk to the achievement of the Councils priorities 
and the Wirral 2025 plan as it will inevitably result in cuts in preventative services 
and in services and functions that will generate future savings and cost avoidance for 
the Council from additional income or reduced demand.

Comprehensive Spending Review 

3.14 The Government’s Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) is where the 
Government decide where to spend its resources in the following year. The outcome 
of this for Local Government is the funding settlement where Councils get to hear 
whether their funding has been increased, stays the same or is being reduced for the 
following year.  The CSR was due to be take place ready for the 2020/21 budget 
planning process.  As a result of Brexit this was postponed and a one year 
settlement was provided.  This makes financial planning extremely difficult as 
temporary funding streams are uncertain and it is not known whether they will 
continue.  

3.15 As a result of Covid-19, the Government have stated that they will ‘do whatever it 
takes’ to ensure Local Authorities are funded adequately to support the response, 
however no information or announcement has yet been provided about the indirect 
impact of Covid-19 e.g. an assumed ongoing reduction in sales, fees and charges 
and additional expenditure which are contributing to new pressures in 2021/22. 

3.16 As the Local Authority funding settlement is not due to be announced until December 
2020 it is very difficult to set the budget in advance. As a result, there is little choice 
at this stage to plan for a worst case scenario as statutory consultation needs to be 
considered within the budget setting timescale. 

3.17 In the event of the award of a capitalisation directive and a more favourable 
settlement than planned for in the 2021/22 budget and beyond, the proposals put 
forward as part of the 2021/22 budget report can be adjusted after the settlement has 
been announced.

Page 6



4.0 PLANNING FOR THE 2021/22 BUDGET 

4.1 During October to December, reports will be presented to the Policy & Resources 
Committee that update Members on changes to the budget gap.  The reports being 
presented to the Policy and Resources Committee up to the time the budget is set 
are:

 October: Covid-19 position statement 
2021/22 Transitional budget process

 November: Budget update report

 December/January: Budget proposals to go out for public consultation

 January: Budget update report including the Government funding settlement

 February: 2021/22 Budget to be recommended to Full Council

4.2 The Council is in a position where it does not know, and will not know until 
December, what financial situation it will be fully facing for 2021/22. The Council will 
not receive a response to its request for a capitalisation directive from HM Treasury 
until late November and is unlikely to receive a revised local government financial 
settlement, in the light of the delayed Fair Funding Review and Covid budgetary 
approach from central Government, until December. 

4.3 This means that the Committees are not in a position to fairly and fully propose 
funding options for consultation and recommendation to Council as a coherent legal 
and balanced budget for some weeks to come. 

4.4 In the interim, Officers have been modelling scenarios and working with colleagues 
to test formed and unformed proposals and responses to these scenarios. When the 
situation becomes clear, proposals can be brought forward as tested and costed 
options upon which consultation can take place in a public sphere. Until that time, 
these options are best considered within working group and briefing sessions. For 
this reason, this public report sets out the broader situation and aspects of the 
scenarios will be tested with members of the Committee as a consultative exercise 
outside of the Committee. 

4.5 A workshop will therefore take place on the rising of the Committee meeting. The 
courts recognise that such a meeting is acceptable, provided that the purpose is not 
to make any decision or exercise any delegation of powers. The purposes of such a 
workshop is to brief members on all scenarios and proposals, regardless whether 
they are fully formed, practicable or necessary in the eventual circumstance, and to 
allow Members and officers together to consider the best way to contribute to the 
development of proposals. 

4.6 Once all relevant factors are known, officers will report back to this Committee or 
directly to Policy and Resources Committee, depending on which is scheduled first, 
in order to take formed proposals forward for consideration and consultation.

Page 7



4.7 The objective of the workshop is to debate and discuss budget options considering 
the factors below: 

 Impact on residents
 Impact on the workforce
 Impact on Wirral as a place
 Level of risk
 Impact on the future ability of the area to generate income or avoid future costs
 Whether the service is Statutory
 Where the service is non-statutory, what beneficial outcomes it generates

4.8 Committees are encouraged to identify and submit their own ideas for proposals for 
Officers to work up, within the budget timescale at the workshop.  

4.9 Committee Members may find it helpful to rank the options numerically in providing 
feedback to the Policy and Resources Committee in December or January 
(depending on the date of the Government funding settlement) and the Committee 
will be presented with the suite of proposals for consideration for public consultation.

4.10 Where proposals are still being developed, they can be fed into the process at any 
time, through individual committees to Policy and Resources.  Members must be 
mindful however, of the Council’s obligation for public consultation where late 
proposals miss the December/January Policy and Resources deadline. 

4.11 The consultation process will take around 4 weeks and updates will be presented to 
the individual committees during January and February with the outcome presented 
to the Policy & Resources Committee in February 2021 with a full budget package to 
be recommended to Full Council to set the 2021/22 budget in March 2021. 

4.12 Where the Policy and Resources Committee fails to identify sufficient proposals from 
the 5 phases that have been submitted by Officers, rejects any proposals for 
implementation, and fails to identify any alternative proposals to recommend a 
balanced budget to Full Council in March, this would result in the Section 151 Officer 
issuing a Section 114 notice.  The implications of which would mean intervention by 
the Government and the appointment of external Commissioners to manage the 
Council’s finances.  As the proposals submitted to the Committees by the Officers as 
part of the 5 phases will be robust and achievable, it is likely that the external 
Commissioners would action the implementation of these.

5.0 2020/21 COMMITTEE BUDGET 

5.1 The tables below indicate the 2020/21 budget for each Council Directorate and for 
the functions that fall under the remit of this committee. There are a number of 
functions e.g. Housing that fall under the remit of other Policy & Service Committees.

Directorate £m
Regeneration & Place 36.623
Neighbourhoods 60.686
Children, Families & Education 81.014
Adult Care and Health 106.912
Resources 11.477

Page 8



Law & Governance 6.611
Chief Executive’s Office 1.374
Total 2020/21 Net Budget 304.697

Economy, Regeneration and Development  
Committee

£m

Regeneration 24.37
Asset Management & Investment 0.18
Planning 1.45
Local Plan 0.40
Total 26.40

6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

6.1 There are no specific implications of this report as it relates to the process for the 
2021/22 budget. The financial implications of any of the budget options will be 
included within relevant future reports

7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 The entire report concerns the duty of the Council to avoid a budget shortfall. The 
Chief Finance Officer has a personal duty under the Local Government Finance Act 
1988 Section 114 to make a report to the executive if it appears to them that the 
expenditure of the authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to incur) in a 
financial year is likely to exceed the resources available to it to meet that 
expenditure.  The current financial situation is at a point in time and further funding 
and flexibilities is awaited from Government to offset the budget gap.  If this is not 
sufficient to offset the forecast and no alternatives can be found, this position will be 
revisited.

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

8.1 There are no specific implications resulting from this report, however any implications 
relating to the individual budget options will be included in relevant future reports.

9.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

9.1 There are no specific risks resulting from this report, however any risks relating to the 
individual budget options will be included in relevant future reports.

10.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

10.1 Informal consultation has been carried out with Members who have been kept 
appraised of the Council’s budget situation.

11.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

11.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 

Page 9



Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

11.2 Any equality implications from the individual budget proposals will be included within 
Equality Impact Assessments.

12.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

12.1 There are no specific environment or climate implications resulting from this report, 
however any implications relating to the individual budget options with regards to the 
environment or the climate, will be included in relevant future reports.

REPORT AUTHOR: Alan Evans
(Alan Evans, Director of Regeneration and Place)
telephone:  Tel: 0151 691 8515
email:  alanevans@wirral.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS

2020/21 Budget Report
2020/21 Quarter 1 Budget Monitoring Report

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting Date
Full Council

Cabinet

2 March 2020 

27 July 202

Page 10



ECONOMY REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Tuesday, 27 October 2020

REPORT TITLE: BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION AND PLACE

REPORT SUMMARY

Through the development of Wirral Council’s new Governance arrangements and the 
approval of the Wirral Plan 2025 (currently being refreshed to reflect strategic priorities, as 
a result of Covid-19) the Authority has committed to developing a budget and performance 
monitoring framework, which honours the Council’s dedication to a more accountable, 
transparent way of conducting business, policy formation and decision making. 

It is proposed that the Performance Framework is modelled on the Covid Dashboard set up 
at the start of the Coronavirus pandemic. This will enable clear and accessible data to be 
presented in a timely and meaningful way.

There are a very wide range of data sets that could be included in the Dashboard, and it is 
proposed that the specific selection will be co-created with members to ensure it is of most 
relevance and benefit to members.

Aligned with this is the Wirral Plan 2025. The Plan is currently being refreshed to reflect the 
Covid-19 situation and emerging Recovery Plans. This Plan will set out what the Council 
wants to achieve, working together with our partners, communities, and businesses to 
improve the quality of life for our residents. 

Our ambition is for:
 A prosperous, inclusive economy where local people can get good jobs and achieve 

their aspirations.
 A sustainable borough that is not only environmentally friendly but one which plays 

its part in urgently responding to the environment and climate crisis 
 Brighter futures for our young people and families – regardless of their background 

or where they live
 Safe, vibrant communities where people want to live and raise their families
 Services which help people live happy, healthy, independent, and active lives, with 

public services there to support them when they need it

RECOMMENDATION
That members note the proposals outlined in the report for shaping future Performance 
monitoring reports, and that further discussions take place with the Committee Chair and 
Group Spokesperson in early November so that they can shape monitoring reports for the 
purposes of this Committee.

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To ensure that governance arrangements in Wirral enable open, transparent, and 
responsive decision making, robust performance and budget monitoring will be 
incorporated so that Policy and Resources Committee and the individual policy and 
service committees have sufficient oversight of these areas.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 There are a number of options for capturing performance and budget information, 
and these will be presented to members at the workshop  

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 Regular monitoring of performance and the Council’s performance and budgets will 
ensure the Public have oversight and to enable Elected Members to make informed 
decisions in a timely manner. 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are none arising from this report.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Council’s Corporate Risk Register was presented to Audit & Risk Management 
Committee in March 2020. This is currently being reviewed and aligned to the new 
committees’ priorities and objectives within this process, and to reflect the updated 
Wirral Plan and the impact of Covid-19. 

7.2 As the plan is currently being refreshed to reflect changes due to Covid-19, a new 
Performance Management Framework (PMF) is currently being developed to align 
with the refreshed plan. The PMF will be aligned to the Council’s risk management 
strategy and both will be regularly reviewed as part of corporate management 
processes.

7.3 There are significant implications for the Council in changing its decision-making 
structure to a new form of governance, which is being launched alongside 

Page 12



unprecedented financial and service pressures resulting from both the Covid-19 
pandemic and subsequent demand on services. As such, Wirral Council have had to 
re-prioritise and re-design how our services are delivered and operated. 

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 The priorities in the Council Plan 2025 were informed by stakeholder engagement 
carried out in 2019. 

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

(a) Yes, and impact review can be found at https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-
and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
Navigate to Equality Impact Assessments since 2017.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 The Wirral Plan 2025 includes a set of goals and objectives to create a sustainable 
environment which urgently tackles the environment emergency. These are based 
on developing and delivering plans that improve the environment for Wirral residents. 
The performance report will include information on key areas where environment and 
climate related outcomes are delivered. 

The content and/or recommendations contained within this report are expected to: - 
Reduce emissions of greenhouse gasses.

REPORT AUTHOR: Carly Brown
(Carly Brown, Assistant Director: Corporate Office)
telephone:  Tel: 0151 666 4288
email:  carlybrown@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

BACKGROUND PAPERS

The Wirral Plan 2025 

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date
Council agreed The Wirral Plan 2025 October 2019

Page 13

https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments
https://www.wirral.gov.uk/communities-and-neighbourhoods/equality-impact-assessments


This page is intentionally left blank



ECONOMY, REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Tuesday 27th October 2020

REPORT TITLE: WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE
REPORT OF: DIRECTOR OF LAW AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT SUMMARY

The Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee, in co-operation with the other 
Policy and Service Committees, is responsible for proposing and delivering an annual 
committee work programme. This work programme should align with the corporate priorities 
of the Council, in particular the delivery of the key decisions which are within the remit of 
the Committee.  
 
It is envisaged that the work programme will be formed from a combination of key 
decisions, standing items and requested officer reports. This report provides the Committee 
with an opportunity to plan and regularly review its work across the municipal year. The 
work programme for the Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee is attached 
as Appendix 1 to this report.

RECOMMENDATION/S

Members are invited to note and comment on the proposed Economy, Regeneration and 
Development Committee work programme for the remainder of the 2020/21 municipal year.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



SUPPORTING INFORMATION

1.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

1.1 To ensure Members of the Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee 
have the opportunity to contribute to the delivery of the annual work programme.

2.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

2.1 A number of workplan formats were explored, with the current framework open to 
amendment to match the requirements of the Committee.

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION

3.1 The work programme should align with the priorities of the Council and its partners. 
The programme will be informed by: 

            The Council Plan 
 The Council’s transformation programme 
 The Council’s Forward Plan 
            Service performance information 
 Risk management information 
 Public or service user feedback 
 Referrals from Council

Terms of Reference 
 

The Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee has responsibility for 
developing and delivering a vision for Wirral as a place. It is responsible for 
developing and determining or recommending all planning and transport policies, 
including the Local Plan, and infrastructure planning. It is also responsible for 
promoting regeneration, economic development and associated activities, including 
the tourism, culture and visitor economy, and for removing barriers to growth. 

The Committee is charged by full Council to undertake responsibility for:  

(a) development and delivery of the Council’s strategic objectives for planning, 
sustainability and transportation;  

(b) developing and recommending those plans and strategies which together 
comprise the Local Plan;  

(c) developing and adopting or recommending (if reserved to Council) other spatial 
planning documents, including but not limited to 

(i) supplementary planning documents (SPD) and planning policy advice notes;   
(ii) Master Plans and development briefs;   

Page 16



(iii) The Infrastructure Delivery Plan; and  
(iv) [The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) when applicable ];  

(d) economic development, including but not limited to infrastructure, enterprise, 
skills and seeking, securing and managing external funds to achieve that, directly or 
in partnership with joint ventures and external companies or bodies as well as with 
the Combined Authority and government bodies;   

(e) the Council’s functions and partnerships regarding the promotion of economic 
growth and the establishment and development of business;  

(f) the promotion and development of the economic factors in the area, such as 
seeking to ensure sufficient and appropriate employment sites, investment, adult 
skills, apprenticeship schemes, productivity, development sites and so forth;   

(g) overseeing the progress of major projects (including major building, infrastructure 
or other projects involving the erection or significant alteration of major permanent 
structures or landmarks) undertaken by the Council directly or as enabler, funder or 
joint enterprise partner, including but not limited to the Wirral Growth Company LLP;  

(h) reviewing major projects and any project boards having regard to capacity to 
deliver, corporate priorities and resources, and advise the Policy and Resources 
Committee as appropriate;  

(i) providing a view of performance, budget monitoring and risk management in 
relation to the Committee’s functions; and  

(j) undertaking the development and implementation of policy in relation to the 
Committee’s functions, incorporating the assessment of outcomes, review of 
effectiveness and formulation of recommendations to the Council, partners and other 
bodies, which shall include any decision relating to the above functions.

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.1 This report is for information and planning purposes only, therefore there are no 
direct financial implication arising. However, there may be financial implications 
arising as a result of work programme items.

5.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no direct legal implications arising from this report. However, there may be 
legal implications arising as a result of work programme items.

6.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: STAFFING, ICT AND ASSETS

6.1 There are no direct implications to Staffing, ICT or Assets.

7.0 RELEVANT RISKS 

7.1 The Committee’s ability to undertake it’s responsibility to provide strategic direction 
to the operation of the Council, make decisions on policies, co-ordinate spend, and 

Page 17



maintain a strategic overview of outcomes, performance, risk management and 
budgets may be compromised if it does not have the opportunity to plan and 
regularly review its work across the municipal year.

8.0 ENGAGEMENT/CONSULTATION 

8.1 Not applicable.

9.0 EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1 Wirral Council has a legal requirement to make sure its policies, and the way it 
carries out its work, do not discriminate against anyone. An Equality Impact 
Assessment is a tool to help council services identify steps they can take to ensure 
equality for anyone who might be affected by a particular policy, decision or activity.

This report is for information to Members and there are no direct equality
implications.

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE IMPLICATIONS

10.1 This report is for information to Members and there are no direct environment and 
climate implications.

REPORT AUTHOR: Alexandra Davidson
                                      Senior Democratic Services Officer

0151 691 8381
alexandradavidson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES

Appendix 1: Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee Work Plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Wirral Council Constitution
Forward Plan
The Council’s Transformation Programme

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting Date

Page 18



ECONOMY, REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE
WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21

PROPOSED AGENDA FOR ECONOMY, REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
COMMITTEE 
27h October 2020
Item Key 

Decision 
Yes/No

Lead Departmental 
Officer

Wirral Plan 
Priority

HIND STREET, 
BIRKENHEAD 
COLLABORATION 
AGREEMENT

Yes Sally Shah ‘Inclusive 
Economy’

WIRRAL WATERS 
CONNECTIVITY (7) - 
DUKE STREET (PHASE 2)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive 
Economy’

COVID-19 ECONOMIC 
RECOVERY PLAN

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive 
Economy’

BUDGET 2021/22 
PROCESS

No Shaer Halewood ‘Inclusive 
Economy’

BUDGET AND 
PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING

No Carly Brown/Rachel 
Howey

All

ECONOMY, 
REGENERATION AND 
DEVELOPMENT WORK 
PROGRAMME REPORT 

No Committee Team All

DECISIONS 

Deadline for SLT Deadline for Cleared Reports  Agenda Published
1st October 2020 8th October 2020 TBC

Page 19



Item Key 
Decision

Lead 
Departmental 
Officer  

Wirral Plan Priority

Wirral Waters Enterprise 
Zone Investment Fund
(First publication on 
Forward Plan 18/12/2015)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Temporary Market, 
Birkenhead

Yes – 
November 
2020

Sally Shah ‘Inclusive Economy’

European Structural and 
Investment Funds (ESIF) 
Programme for England 
(2014-2020)
(First publication on 
Forward Plan 9/12/2016)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Liverpool City Region 
Combined Authority 
Devolution Funding
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 03/08/2017)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Local Enterprise 
Partnership Update
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 18/01/2013)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Local Development 
Scheme 
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 02/08/2019)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Spatial Framework for the 
Borough
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 02/08/2018)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Merseyside Connected - 
Broadband Delivery UK 
(BDUK)
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 18/10/2012)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Hind Street Regeneration 
Strategy (PART EXEMPT)
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 02/08/2019)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Tower Road South 
Development
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 02/08/2019)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Page 20



Towns / High Street Funds
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 01/11/2019)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Preferred Developer to 
Deliver the New Ferry 
Regeneration (EXEMPT)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Wirral Waters Connectivity 
(7) - Duke Street (Phase 2)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Wirral International 
Business Park 
Connections - A41 Carlett 
Park

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

A41 Phase 1 Business 
Case (PART EXEMPT)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Liverpool City Region 
Cycling Walking 
Investment Plan - 
Birkenhead to New 
Brighton
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 04/10/2019)

Yes David Ball ‘Inclusive Economy’

Birkenhead Town Centre 
Masterplan (EXEMPT)
(First Publication on 
Forward Plan 10/02/2015)

Yes David Ball ‘Inclusive Economy’

Maritime Knowledge Hub Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

Preferred Developer to 
Deliver the New Ferry 
Regeneration (PART 
EXEMPT)

Yes Alan Evans ‘Inclusive Economy’

ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS – WAITING TO BE SCHEDULED 

Item Approximate timescale Lead Departmental 
Officer  

Liverpool City Region 
Update

REASSIGNED TO 
PARTNERSHIPS COMMITTEE

Rose Boylan

STANDING ITEMS AND MONITORING REPORTS  
Item Reporting Frequency  Lead Departmental 

Officer  
Financial Monitoring 
Report

TBC Shaer Halewood

Page 21



Performance Monitoring 
Report

TBC Alan Evans

Regen Committee Work 
Programme Update

TBC Committee Team

Public questions Each meeting

WORK PROGRAMME ACTIVITIES OUTSIDE COMMITTEE 
Item Format Timescale Lead Officer  Progress 
Working Groups/ Sub Committees

Task and Finish Reviews
- - -- -
Spotlight Sessions and Workshops
- - - - -
- - - - -

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 37

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 45

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 2021/22 BUDGET PROCESS
	6 Budget and Performance Monitoring
	7 Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee Work Programme Update Report
	Enc. 1 for Economy, Regeneration and Development Committee Work Programme Update Report

	9 Hind Street: Collaboration Agreement
	Enc. 4 for Hind Street: Collaboration Agreement
	Enc. 5 for Hind Street: Collaboration Agreement
	Enc. 6 for Hind Street: Collaboration Agreement


